
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

BALLINGER, TEXAS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

 

 

 

 



  

 

  

806.791.1591 // 1500 Broadway, Suite 1000, Lubbock, TX 79401 // www.dhcg.com 

 
 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
Management and the Board of Directors 
Ballinger Memorial Hospital District 
Ballinger, Texas 
 
We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of Ballinger Memorial Hospital District, 
(the “District”), as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position and statements of cash flows, for the years then ended and the related notes 
to financial statements, which collectively comprise Ballinger Memorial Hospital District’s basic 
financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Durbin & Company, L.L.P.    
Certified Public Accountants      

 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Ballinger Memorial Hospital District as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the 
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and defined benefit plan information on pages A-1 through A-5 and pages 32 
through 34 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. 
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.



Durbin & Company, L.L.P.    

Certified Public Accountants      

 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 25, 

2022 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 

matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

Durbin & Company, L.L.P. 

Lubbock, Texas 

March 25, 2022
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BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

(Unaudited) 

A-1 

 
Our discussion and analysis of Ballinger Memorial Hospital District’s (the “District”) financial 
performance provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020.  Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, 
which begin on page 1. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

 The District’s net position reflects a $4,812,811, or 38.6%, increase in 2021 and a 
$4,391,157, or 54.3%, increase in 2020. 

 The District reported an operating income of $335,841 in 2021 and $914,936 in 2020. 

 Net patient service revenue increased $1,925,620, or 12.4%, in 2021 and increased 
$3,379,648, or 27.8%, in 2020 compared to 2019. 

 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

 
The District’s financial statements consist of three statements, a Statement of Net Position; a Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and a Statement of Cash Flows.  These financial 
statements and related notes provide information about the activities of the District, including resources 
held by the District but restricted for specific purposes by contributors, grantors, and enabling 
legislation. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 
Our analysis of the District’s finances begins on page A-2.  One of the most important questions asked 
about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a whole better or worse off as a result of the year’s 
activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position report information about the District’s resources and its activities in a way that helps 
answer this question.  These statements include all restricted and unrestricted assets and all liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting. All the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

 
These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in it.  You can think of the District’s 
net position—the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities—as one way 
to measure the District’s financial health, or net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You 
will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District’s patient base 
and measures of the quality of service it provides to the community, as well as local economic factors to 
assess the overall health of the District. 



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

            SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

(Unaudited) 
 

A-2 

The Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The final required statement is the Statement of Cash Flows.  This statement reports cash receipts, cash 
payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities.  It 
provides answers to such questions as; “Where did cash come from?”, “What was cash used for?”, and 
“What was the change in cash balances during the reporting period?” 
 
THE DISTRICT’S NET POSITION 

 
The District’s net position is the difference between its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources reported in the Statements of Net Position on page 1.  The District’s 
net position increased by $4,812,811, or 38.6%, in 2021 and increased by $4,391,157, or 54.3%, in 
2020, as you can see from Table 1. 
 
Table 1: Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and 

Net Position 

 

2021 2020 2019
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Current Assets 16,875,200$    15,733,458$   4,782,783$      
Capital Assets, Net 4,798,897        4,216,238       4,956,594        
Other Long-Term Assets -                      -                      79,080             

Total Assets 21,674,097      19,949,696     9,818,457        
Deferred Outflows of Resources 696,595           419,455          167,671           

Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 22,370,692$    20,369,151$   9,986,128$      

Liabilities:

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion -$                    -$                    175,569$         
Notes Payable -                      907,977          -                      
Other Current and Non Current Liabilities 2,239,039 1,376,290 1,727,128

Total Liabilities 2,239,039        2,284,267 1,902,697
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,844,254        5,610,296       -                      

Total Liabilities and Deferred

Inflows of Resources 5,083,293        7,894,563       1,902,697        

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,798,897        4,216,238       4,781,025        

Restricted 60,082             278,011          -                      

Unrestricted 12,428,420      7,980,339       3,302,406        

Total Net Position 17,287,399      12,474,588     8,083,431        
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position 22,370,692$    20,369,151$   9,986,128$      



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

            SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

(Unaudited) 
 

A-3 

OPERATING RESULTS AND CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S NET POSITION 

 

The District’s net position increased by $4,812,811 and $4,391,157 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Table 2: Operating Results and Changes in Net Position 

 
2021 2020 2019

Operating Revenues:
Net Patient Service Revenue 17,446,883$  15,521,263$  12,141,615$  
Nursing Home Revenue 5,879,279      6,597,376      6,538,517      
Other Operating Revenue 1,255,713 1,039,722 755,898

Total Operating Revenue 24,581,875    23,158,361    19,436,030    

Operating Expenses:

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits 9,481,870 7,440,747 7,034,555
Nursing Home Expenses 6,408,707 6,721,354 6,538,517
Other Operating Expenses 7,539,986 7,061,949 5,658,466
Depreciation / Amortization 815,471 1,019,375 983,026

Total Operating Expenses 24,246,034    22,243,425    20,214,564    

Operating Income (Loss) 335,841         914,936         (778,534)       

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:

Property Tax Revenue 992,408         925,133         908,403         
Noncapital Grants and Contributions 114,898         500                -                    
Interest Expense -                    (14,317)         (2,797)           
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds Progam Revenue 2,159,072      2,351,935      -                    
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt 907,977         -                    -                    
Other 235,181         34,110           30,217           

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 4,409,536      3,297,361      935,823         

Excess of Revenues over Expenses Before

Capital Grants and Contributions 4,745,377      4,212,297      157,289         

Capital Grants and Contributions 67,434           178,860         380,390         

Increase in Net Position 4,812,811      4,391,157      537,679         

Net Position, Beginning of Year 12,474,588    8,083,431      7,545,752      

Net Position, End of Year 17,287,399$  12,474,588$  8,083,431$    



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

            SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

(Unaudited) 
 

A-4 

Operating Income (Loss) 

 
The first component of the overall change in the District’s net position is its operating income (loss) - 
generally, the difference between net patient service revenues and the expenses incurred to perform 
those services.  The District reported operating income in 2021 of $335,841 and reported operating 
income of $914,936 in 2020. 
 
The primary components of the operating income in 2021 are: 
 

 Net patient service revenue increased by $1,925,620, or 12.4%, from 2020 

 Other operating revenue increased by $215,991, or 20.8%, from 2020 

 Nursing home revenue decreased by $718,097, or 10.9%, from 2020  

 Salaries, wages, and benefits expense increased by $2,041,123, or 27.4%, from 2020   
 
The primary components of the operating income in 2020 are: 
 

 Net patient service revenue increased by $3,379,648, or 27.8%, from 2019  

 Other operating revenue increased by $283,824, or 37.6%, from 2019 

 Salaries, wages, and benefits expense increased by $406,192, or 5.8%, from 2019   
 
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

 

Nonoperating revenues consist primarily of property taxes levied by the District, CARES Act Provider 
Relief Funds (“PRF”), and gain on extinguishment of debt. The District’s property tax revenues, net of 
appraisal fees, during 2021 and 2020 were $992,408 and $925,133, respectively.  During 2021, the 
District recognized $2,159,072 in non-capital PRF revenue and recognized $67,434 in capital related 
PRF revenue.  During 2020, the District recognized $2,351,935 in non-capital PRF revenue and 
recognized $40,000 in capital related PRF revenue.  During 2021 and 2020, the District recorded a gain 
on the extinguishment of debt of $907,977 and $-0-, respectively, due to the forgiveness of the Paycheck 
Protection Program loan. 
 
Grants and Contributions 

 

The District receives both capital and operating grants from various sources for specific programs. 
Capital grants and contributions received during 2021 and 2020 were $67,434 and $178,860, 
respectively.  Noncapital grants and contributions received during 2021 and 2020 were $114,898 and 
$500, respectively.    
 
THE DISTRICT’S CASH FLOWS 

 
Changes in the District’s cash flows are consistent with changes in operating loss and nonoperating 
revenues and expenses, discussed earlier. 
 



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

            SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

(Unaudited) 
 

A-5 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

At the end of 2021 and 2020, the District had $4,798,897 and $4,216,238, respectively, invested in 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as detailed in Note 7 of the financial statements.  The 
District acquired capital assets in the amount of $1,398,130 and $279,018 in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 

Debt 

 

The District’s Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) loan in the amount of $907,977 that was assumed 
in 2020, was forgiven in full in November 2020.  During 2021 and 2020, the District held a line of credit 
up to $1.5 million with West Texas State Bank.  The line of credit is necessary for operations of the 
District.  During 2021 and 2020, the District drew $-0- and $-0-, respectively, against the line of credit 
and paid $-0- and $-0-, respectively. 
 
At the end of 2021 and 2020, the District had long-term debt outstanding of $-0- and $-0-, respectively, 
as detailed in Note 9 of the financial statements.  
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 
This financial report is designed to provide our patients, suppliers, and creditors with a general overview 
of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have 
any questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the administration at 
Ballinger Memorial Hospital District, 608 Avenue B, Ballinger, Texas 76821.
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BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
- 1 - 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,836,814$     3,876,569$     
Short-Term Investments 7,436,204       6,921,810       
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,082            278,011          

Patient Accounts Receivable, Net 2,011,094       1,549,511       
Accounts Receivable - Nursing Home 389,354          242,691          
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 405,738          693,248          
Other Receivables 921,992          1,462,227       
Inventory of Supplies 580,106          452,477          
Prepaid and Other Current Assets 217,092          239,044          
Property Taxes Receivable 16,724            17,870            

Total Current Assets 16,875,200     15,733,458     

CAPITAL ASSETS,

Land 51,778 43,920

Net of Accumulated Depreciation 4,001,226 4,172,318
Construction-in-Progress 745,893          -                      

Total Capital Assets, Net 4,798,897       4,216,238       

Total Assets 21,674,097     19,949,696     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 89,437            41,820            

Changes in Assumptions 174,583          1,223              

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 432,575          376,412          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 696,595          419,455          

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources 22,370,692$   20,369,151$   



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
- 2 - 

 
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 

AND NET POSITION: 2021 2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes Payable -$                    907,977$        
Accounts Payable 552,370          350,288          
Accounts Payable - Nursing Home 577,970          305,213          
Accrued Payroll, Benefits, and Related Liabilities 547,733          495,934          
Self-Funded Health Insurance 47,233            65,291            
Other Accrued Liabilities 103,592          103,592          

Total Current Liabilities 1,828,898       2,228,295       

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Net Pension Liability 410,141          55,972            

Total Liabilities 2,239,039       2,284,267       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 19,072            15,026            

CARES Act Provider Relief Funds 527,172          2,297,180       

Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payments 2,298,010       3,298,090       
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,844,254       5,610,296       

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,798,897       4,216,238       

Restricted 60,082            278,011          
Unrestricted 12,428,420     7,980,339       

Total Net Position 17,287,399     12,474,588     

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position 22,370,692$   20,369,151$   



BALLINGER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES,  

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2021 2020
OPERATING REVENUES:

Net Patient Service Revenue 17,446,883$   15,521,263$   
Nursing Home Revenue 5,879,279       6,597,376       
Delivery System Reform Incentive Program 277,500 255,601
Quality Incentive Payment Program 396,499 243,374
Other Operating Revenue 581,714          540,747          

Total Operating Revenues 24,581,875     23,158,361     

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and Wages 7,036,474 5,944,759
Employee Benefits 2,445,396 1,495,988
Professional Fees and Purchased Services 3,397,551 3,030,985
Supplies and Other 4,142,435 4,030,964
Operating Expenses - Nursing Home 6,408,707       6,721,354
Depreciation and Amortization 815,471          1,019,375       

Total Operating Expenses 24,246,034     22,243,425     

Operating Income 335,841          914,936          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Property Tax Revenue 992,408          925,133          
Noncapital Grants and Contributions 114,898          500                 
Gain on Insurance Recovery, Net 200,000          -                      
Investment Income 35,181            34,110            
Interest Expense -                      (14,317)           
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds Progam Revenue 2,159,072       2,351,935       
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt 907,977          -                      

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 4,409,536       3,297,361       

4,745,377       4,212,297       

Capital Grants and Contributions 67,434            178,860          

Increase in Net Position 4,812,811       4,391,157       

Net Position, Beginning of Year 12,474,588     8,083,431       

Net Position, End of Year 17,287,399$   12,474,588$   

Grants and Contributions

Excess of Revenues over Expenses Before Capital
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from and on Behalf of Patients 17,902,266$   21,586,437$   
Payments to Suppliers and Contractors (13,619,465)    (13,906,928)    
Payments to Employees (7,107,052)      (7,319,884)      
Other Receipts and Payments, Net 1,785,325       477,478          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,038,926)      837,103          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment Earnings 34,427            33,992            
Purchase of Investments (514,394)         (6,921,810)      

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (479,967)         (6,887,818)      

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital Grants and Contributions -                      178,860          
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-term Debt and Notes Payable -                      383,282          
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt -                      (558,851)         
Interest Paid on Long-term Debt -                      (14,317)           
Purchase of Capital Assets (1,398,130)      (655,105)         
Insurance Proceeds 200,000          -                      
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds for Capital Activities 67,434            40,000            

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing

Activities (1,130,696)      (626,131)         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:

Property Tax Revenues 1,072,250       922,315          
Proceeds from Issuance of Notes Payable -                      907,977          
Noncapital Grants and Contributions 171,845          500                 
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds 2,147,810       7,907,205       

3,391,905       9,737,997       

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 742,316          3,061,151       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,154,580 1,093,429

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 4,896,896$     4,154,580$     

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
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2021 2020
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO

THE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Presented Under the Following Titles:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,836,814$     3,876,569$     
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,082            278,011          

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,896,896$     4,154,580$     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income 335,841$        914,936$        
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 815,471          1,019,375       
Provision of Bad Debts 1,847,552       1,635,975       

(Increase) Decrease in:

Patient Accounts Receivable (2,309,135)      (1,635,958)      

Patient Accounts Receivable - Nursing Home (146,663)         49,988            

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 287,510          (485,799)         

Other Receivables 540,235          (561,773)         

Inventory of Supplies (127,629)         (104,037)         
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets (101,675)         136,826          

Net Pension Asset -                      79,080            

Deferred Outflows of Resources (277,140)         (251,784)         
Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts Payable 202,082          31,249            
Accounts Payable - Nursing Home 272,757          (60,844)           

Accrued Salaries, Benefits, and Payroll Liabilities 51,799            68,959            

Self-Funded Health Insurance (18,058)           26,791            

Other Accrued Liabilities -                      (96,879)           

Net Pension Liability 354,169          55,972            

Deferred Inflows of Resources (2,766,042)      15,026            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,038,926)$    837,103$        

 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Gain on Extinguishment of Debt 907,977$        -$                    

Capital Asset Purchases Included in Accounts Payable 287,979$        -$                    
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Organization – Ballinger Memorial Hospital District (the District), was created by a law of the State of 
Texas. The District is governed by a board of directors, elected by the citizens of Runnels County, 
Texas. The District is organized for the purpose of providing healthcare services to the residents of 
Runnels County and the surrounding area. The District’s primary sources of support are from patient 
revenues and other ancillary income. Patient revenues include funds received from Medicare, state 
agencies, insurance companies, and the patients themselves. In addition, the District is responsible for 
the health care of indigent residents of Runnels County, Texas and is funded, in part, by ad valorem 
taxes on real and personal property within the jurisdiction.  
 
Ballinger Memorial Hospital District Health Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a legally separate, tax 
exempt component unit of the District formed during 2011. The Foundation’s primary function is to 
raise and hold funds to support the District and its programs. A majority of the board of the Foundation 
is appointed by the District board of directors while the remaining members are appointed by the current 
board members. The current board of directors consists of District board of director members and 
management, as well as local business professionals. The financial activity of the Foundation is reported 
as a blended component unit of the District. 
 
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of Ballinger Memorial Hospital District 
and the following nursing home and rehabilitation facilities, Coleman Healthcare Center and Cross-
Country Healthcare Center.  The transactions and balances between the entities have been eliminated. 
 
Enterprise Fund Accounting – The District uses enterprise fund accounting.  Revenue and expenses 
are recognized on the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement focus.  The District has 
elected to apply the provisions based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 

1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  The District has also elected to apply the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 

Liabilities.        
 
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the end of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all 
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding 
amounts whose use is limited by board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements or with 
third-party payors. 
 
Patient Accounts Receivable – The allowance for estimated uncollectible patient accounts receivable is 
maintained at a level which, in management’s judgment, is adequate to absorb patient account balance 
write-offs inherent in the billing process. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Patient Accounts Receivable (Continued) – The amount of the allowance is based on management’s 
evaluation of the collectability of patient accounts receivable, including the nature of the accounts, credit 
concentrations, trends in historical write-off experience, specific impaired accounts, and economic 
conditions.  Allowances for uncollectibles and contractual adjustments are generally determined by 
applying historical percentages to financial classes within accounts receivable.  The allowances are 
increased by a provision for bad debt expenses and contractual adjustments, and reduced by write–offs, 
net of recoveries. 
 

Inventory of Supplies - Inventory is stated at historical costs on the First-In, First-Out (FIFO) method. 
 

Capital Assets – Capital assets are stated at cost and include expenditures for improvements and 
betterments which substantially increase the useful lives of existing plant and equipment.  Maintenance 
repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred.  When properties are retired or otherwise disposed 
of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any 
profit or loss is credited or charged to income.  Equipment under capital lease obligations is amortized 
on the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the 
equipment life.  Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial 
statements.  Donated assets are recorded at fair market value on the date of donation. 
 
The District capitalizes all assets over $10,000 and provides for depreciation or property and equipment 
by the straight-line method and at rates promulgated by the American Hospital Association which are 
designed to amortize the cost of such equipment over its useful life as follows:   
 
 Land Improvements 15 to 20 years 
 Building (Components) 5 to 40 years 
 Fixed Equipment 5 to 20 years 
 Major Moveable Equipment 3 to 20 years 
 
Net Position – Net position of the District is classified into two components:  net investment in capital 
assets; and unrestricted.  The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes, or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  
The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets and liabilities that are not 
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets component of net position. 
 

Operating Revenues and Expenses – For purposes of display, the District’s statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.  Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associated with providing health care 
services, the District’s principal activity.  Non-exchange revenues, including taxes, grants, and 
contributions received for purposes other than capital asset acquisition, are reported as nonoperating 
revenues.  Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health care services, other than 
financing costs. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Federal Income Taxes - The District is a political subdivision under the laws of the State of Texas, and, 
therefore, it is generally exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal 
Revenue Code and similar provision of state law.  However, the District is subject to federal income tax 
on any unrelated business taxable income. 
 
The Foundation, a blended component unit of the District, is exempt from federal income tax under 
section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in 501(c)(3).  However, the 
Foundation is required to file an annual informational Form 990 return. 
 

Charity Care – The District provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care 
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates.  Management’s policy for the 
provision of charity care is to request proof of income and personal property values, proof of Runnels 
County, Texas residency, number of household members, other benefits received, and other pertinent 
information.  The District applies Federal Poverty Guidelines to determine patient eligibility and 
performs an application review every six months after approval.  Because the District does not pursue 
the collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, charity care is excluded from net patient 
service revenue. 
 

Property Taxes – The District levies taxes as provided under state law on properties within the District.  
These taxes are collected by the Runnels County Appraisal District and are remitted to the District when 
received.  The District’s taxes are levied and become collectible from October 1 to January 31 of the 
succeeding year.  The taxes are based on the assessed values listed as or prior to January 1, which is the 
due date a lien attaches to the taxable property.  Property tax revenues are recognized when they become 
available.  Allowances are provided for delinquent taxes.    
 

Grants and Contributions – From time to time, the District receives grants from federal and state 
agencies, as well as contributions from individuals and private organizations.  Revenues from grants and 
contributions (including contributions of capital assets) are recognized when all eligibility requirements, 
including time requirements are met.  Grants and contributions may be restricted for either specific 
operating purposes or for capital purposes.  Amounts that are unrestricted or that are restricted to a 
specific operating purpose are reported as nonoperating revenues.  Amounts restricted to capital 
acquisitions are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Risk Management – The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts: theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; 
natural disaster; medical malpractice; and employee health, dental, and accident benefits.  Commercial 
insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters other than employee health claims. 
 
Reclassifications – Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for 
comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the 2021 financial statements.  These 
restatements had no effect on the change in net position. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements: 

 

GASB Statement No. 95 - In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 95 – Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative 

Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and 
other stake holders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing 
the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became 
effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, or later.  
 

 The effective date for GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, has been postponed from reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2019 to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 

 The effective date for GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before 

the End of a Construction Period, has been postponed from reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019 to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. 

 The effective date for GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, has been postponed 
from reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 to reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. 

 The effective date for GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, has been postponed 
from reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 to reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. 

 The effective date for GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, has been postponed from 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 to reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. 

 

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements: 

 
GASB Statement No. 87 – In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for leases by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  The Statement is 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. Management is currently evaluating 
the effect this statement will have on the financial statements and related disclosures. 
 

GASB Statement No. 89 – In June 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the end of a 

Construction Period.  The objective of this Statement is (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability 
of information about capital assets and the cost borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify 
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.  The Statement is effective 
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Management is currently evaluating the effect 
this statement will have on the financial statements and related disclosures. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued): 

 
GASB Statement No. 91 – In May 2019, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this Statement 
are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in 
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit 
debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying 
the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a 
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional 
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit 
debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The Statement is effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Management is currently evaluating the effect this 
statement will have on the financial statements and related disclosures.  
 
GASB Statement No. 92 – In January 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative 
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application 
of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific 
provisions about the following: 
 

 The effective date of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases to be effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2019 and is effective for all reporting periods thereafter; 

 Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a 
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB); 

 The applicability of GASB Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to 

Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting 

for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets 
accumulated for postemployment benefits; 

 The applicability of certain requirements of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 
postemployment benefit arrangements; 

 Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a 
government acquisition; 

 Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess 
insurers; 

 Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities in authoritative 
literature; 

 Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. 

 The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87, reinsurance recoveries, and 
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance; 

 The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the applicability of 
Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2020; 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued): 

 

GASB Statement No. 92 (Continued) –  

 

 The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit arrangements 
and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020; 

 The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with 
AROs in a government acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. 
 

Management is currently evaluating the effect this statement will have on the financial statements and 
related disclosures. 
 

GASB Statement No. 96 – In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
issued GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription 
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization 
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and 
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are 
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The Statement is effective 
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022, with earlier application encouraged. Management is 
currently evaluating the effect this statement will have on the financial statements and related 
disclosures. 
 
NOTE 2 - NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 
 

The District has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the District at amounts 
different from its established rates.  A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party 
payors follows: 
 

Medicare and Medicaid – The District is a Critical Access Hospital. Thus, inpatient acute care services, 
certain inpatient non-acute services, and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries 
are paid based on a cost reimbursement methodology. The District is reimbursed for cost reimbursable 
items at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the 
District and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. 
 
Other – The District has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance 
carriers and preferred provider organizations.  The basis for payment under these agreements includes 
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively 
determined daily rates. 
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NOTE 2 - NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 
 

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements - Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and 
Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a 
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. 
Anticipated final settlement amounts from current and prior years’ cost reports are recorded in the 
financial statements as they are determined by the District. Estimated third-party payor settlements 
recorded in current assets as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 are $-0- and $693,248, respectively. 
 

Net patient service revenue for the District is comprised as follows: 
 

2021 2020

Routine Patient Services 2,409,184$     2,385,541$     
Ancillary Patient Services:

Inpatient 3,561,288 4,286,804
Outpatient 26,395,962     20,755,849     

Gross Patient Service Revenue 32,366,434     27,428,194     

Charity (2,283,660)      (1,546,921)      
Third-Party Contractual Adjustments (10,988,552)    (9,019,296)      
Provision for Bad Debts (1,847,552)      (1,635,975)      
Medicaid Supplemental Payments and Other Credits 200,213          295,261          

Net Patient Service Revenue 17,446,883$   15,521,263$   

 
Net patient service revenue for the nursing homes is comprised as follows: 
 

2021 2020

Hospice Revenue 113,642$        120,499$        
Insurance Revenue 97,250            214,656          

Medicaid Revenue 4,186,804       4,272,684       
Medicare Revenue 1,326,161       1,599,012       
Self-Pay Revenue 155,422          390,525          

Total Nursing Home Patient Revenue 5,879,279$     6,597,376$     

 
Charity Care – The value of charity care provided by the District based upon its established rates was 
$2,283,660 in 2021 and $1,546,921 in 2020.  ASU 2010-23 requires charity care to be disclosed on a 
cost basis.  The District utilizes the cost to charge ratios, as calculated based on its most recent cost 
reports, to determine the total cost.  The District’s cost of providing charity care was $1,184,016 and 
$825,573 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

 

At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits with financial 
institutions was $7,862,407 and $5,111,808, respectively.  The bank balance is categorized as follows: 
 

2021 2020

Amount Insured by the FDIC 815,171$       782,356$       
Amount Collateralized with Securities Held by the Pledging

Financial Institution's Trust Department in the District's Name 6,863,476      4,349,709      

Total Bank Balance 7,678,647$    5,132,065$    

NOTE 4 – RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 

Restricted assets are comprised of cash and cash equivalents.  The composition of restricted cash and 
cash equivalents is as follows at September 30, 2021 and 2020: 
 

2021 2020

Externally Restricted for COVID-19 Related Activities:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,082$          -$                    

Externally Restricted for Capital Improvements:
Cash and Cash Equivalents -$                    278,011$        

NOTE 5 – PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 
Patient accounts receivable consist of the following at September 30, 2021 and 2020: 
 

2021 2020

Gross Patient Accounts Receivable 8,163,933$    5,870,393$    
Less: Allowance for Bad Debts (4,362,397)    (2,824,000)    

Allowance for Contractual Adjustments (1,790,442)    (1,496,882)    
Patient Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances 2,011,094$    1,549,511$    
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NOTE 5 – PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The District grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who 
are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements.  The mix of receivables from 
patients and third-party payors at September 30 is as follows: 
 

2021 2020

Medicare 19% 19%
Medicaid 2% 1%
Other Third-Party Payors 15% 10%
Patients 64% 70%

      Total 100% 100%

 
The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at September 30 is as follows for the 
District’s nursing homes: 
 

2021 2020

Medicare 7% 24%
Medicaid 4% 1%
Other Third-Party Payors 86% 67%
Patients 3% 8%

      Total 100% 100%

 
NOTE 6 – PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE 

 
Property taxes are levied on October 1 of each year and become delinquent as of February 1 of the 
following year.  Taxes are reported as revenues in the period for which they are levied.  Tax revenue, net 
of related expenses, for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, was $992,408 and $925,133, 
respectively.  As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the balance of property taxes receivable, and its 
related allowance for uncollectible taxes are as follows: 

 

2021 2020

Taxes Receivable 48,923$         86,831$         
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (32,199)         (68,961)         

Taxes Receivable, Net of Allowance 16,724$         17,870$         
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NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

The following is a summary of capital assets at cost less accumulated depreciation:  
 

Balance Reclass/ Balance

9/30/2020 Additions Retirements 9/30/2021

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 43,920$         7,858$           -$                  51,778$         

Construction in Progress 186,479         745,893         (186,479)       745,893         

Total Capital Assets Not

Being Depreciated 230,399         753,751         (186,479)       797,671         

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 4,612,302      388,589         34,680          5,035,571

Major Moveable Equipment 4,993,134 255,790         126,799        5,375,723

Total Capital Assets

Being Depreciated 9,605,436      644,379         161,479        10,411,294    

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings and Improvements (1,995,449)    (317,711)        -                    (2,313,160)    

Major Moveable Equipment (3,624,148)    (497,760)        25,000          (4,096,908)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (5,619,597)    (815,471)        25,000          (6,410,068)    

Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated, Net 3,985,839      (171,092)        186,479        4,001,226      
Total Capital Assets, Net 4,216,238$    582,659$       -$                  4,798,897$    
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NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

 

Balance Reclass/ Balance

9/30/2019 Additions Retirements 9/30/2020

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 43,920$         -$                   -$                  43,920$         

Construction in Progress 612,055         56,529           (482,105)       186,479         

Total Capital Assets Not Being

Depreciated 655,975         56,529           (482,105)       230,399         

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 4,393,388 -                     218,914        4,612,302      

Major Moveable Equipment 4,507,454 222,489         263,191        4,993,134

Total Capital Assets Not

Being Depreciated 8,900,842      222,489         482,105        9,605,436      

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements (1,682,647)    (312,802)        -                    (1,995,449)    

Major Moveable Equipment (2,917,576)    (706,572)        -                    (3,624,148)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (4,600,223)    (1,019,374)     -                    (5,619,597)    

Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated, Net 4,300,619      (796,885)        482,105        3,985,839      
Total Capital Assets, Net 4,956,594$    (740,356)$      -$                  4,216,238$    

Construction in progress at September 30, 2021 includes costs related to the outpatient physical therapy 
and wellness center project.  The estimated cost of the project is approximately $2,546,480 and is 
expected to be completed in March 2022. Construction in progress at September 30, 2021 also includes 
the Novarad system with a cost of $68,057 and was placed in service in December 2021. 
 
Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $815,471 and $1,019,375, 
respectively. 
 

NOTE 8 – NOTES PAYABLE 

 

Balance Balance

9/30/2020 Additions Reductions 9/30/2021

PPP Loan 907,977$        -$                    (907,977)$       -$                    

 
Balance Balance

9/30/2019 Additions Reductions 9/30/2020

PPP Loan -$                    907,977$        -$                    907,977$        
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NOTE 8 – NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

 
During 2018, the District entered into a line of credit agreement with a maximum of $1,500,000 line of 
credit with West Texas State Bank.  The line of credit carried an interest rate of 4.75% for the first year 
of the agreement and the Prime Rate thereafter.  The line of credit was payable in monthly installments 
and principal upon maturity and has a maturity date of June 1, 2021.  The line of credit was secured by 
property tax revenue.  During 2021 and 2020, the District made no draws or payments against this line 
of credit.   
 
NOTE 9 – LONG-TERM DEBT 

 

Following is a summary of long-term debt on September 30: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within

9/30/2019 Additions Reductions 9/30/2020 One Year

Long-Term Debt:

Evident (A) 175,569$     -$                (175,569)$      -$                -$                

FNB Loan (B) -                  383,282       (383,282)        -                  -                  

Total Long-Term Debt 175,569$     383,282$     (558,851)$      -$                -$                

The terms and due dates of the District’s long-term debt on September 30, 2021 and 2020: 
 

A. Note payable to Evident with a present value of $412,719, with a maturity date of July 1, 2022, 
payable in monthly installments of $7,211, and carrying an imputed interest rate of 1.87%, paid 
in full in 2020. 

B. Note payable to First National Bank, payable in monthly installments of $7,174, carrying an 
interest rate of 4.60%, with a maturity date of October 27, 2024, collateralized by equipment, the 
note was paid in full in September 2020. 

 

The District follows the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of capital assets 
constructed for its own use.  The amount of interest cost incurred in 2021 and 2020 was $-0- and 
$14,317, respectively, all of which was charged to operations.   
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NOTE 10 – SECTION 1115 DEMONSTRATION WAIVER PROGRAM 

 
Uncompensated Care - The District participated in the Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver Program; a 
program designed to benefit rural community hospitals.  This program is facilitated through the District 
providing an intergovernmental transfer whereby federal matching funds are provided to supplement the 
District for the shortfall in Medicaid funding.  In connection with this program, the District provided 
intergovernmental transfers of $54,005 and $118,030, and received $254,218 and $316,883 for the years 
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Additionally, at September 30, 2021 and 2020, the 
District recorded a payable of $-0- and $80,000, respectively for an overpayment recoupment discussed 
in Note 13. Also, at September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recorded a receivable of $113,758 and $-
0-, respectively.  The receivable is included in in other receivables in the accompanying statements of 
net position.  The District recognized revenue of $200,213 and $295,261 for the years ended September 
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The respective revenue is included within net patient service revenue 
in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
Delivery System Reform Incentive Program - As part of the Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver 
Program, the District is eligible to receive incentive payments through the Delivery System Reform 
Incentive Payment Program (“DSRIP”).  This incentive program is designed to improve the experience 
of care, improve the health of populations, and contain costs.  By participating in the DSRIP program, 
the District provides an intergovernmental transfer to finance the non-federal share of the incentive 
payments.  In connection with this program, the District provided intergovernmental transfers of 
$130,536 and $126,127 and received $408,053 and $383,249 for the years ended September 30, 2021 
and 2020, respectively.  The District recognized net revenue of $277,516 and $257,122 for the years 
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The respective revenue is included within other 
operating revenue in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
NOTE 11 – NURSING HOME OPERATIONS 

 

During 2015, the District entered into a series of lease and management agreements with one nursing 
home operator that resulted in the District becoming the legal operator of two nursing homes. Under the 
management agreements, the managers provide all services necessary to operate the homes, including 
employees, supplies and other operating costs. The managers also provide all billing and collection 
services. All patient revenue from the facilities is paid to the District. From these collections, the District 
pays the managers for all facility costs and the management fees pursuant to the agreements. The 
management agreements have initial terms of 2 years.  As of September 1, 2021, the District had a 
change of ownership and no longer owns the two nursing homes. 
 
In connection with these transfer agreements, the District has recorded all patient revenue and the related 
accounts receivable. The District has recorded $5,879,279 and $6,597,376 in patient related revenue for 
the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  These revenues are recorded as Nursing 
Home revenue on the statements of revenues and expenses and changes in net position. 
 

Additionally, the District has entered into separate management agreements whereby each facility is 
managed by a third-party in which the District pays monthly fees for management services and 
operating expenses including quality incentives, if any, based upon the terms of each individual 
agreement.  
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NOTE 11 – NURSING HOME OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 

 

These fees totaled $6,408,707 and $6,721,354 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively.  These expenses are recorded in Nursing Home expenses on the statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position.  Amounts due and unpaid as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 for 
these expenses are $577,970 and $305,213, respectively. 
 

Quality Incentive Payment Program – During its 84th session, the Texas Legislature directed HHSC to 
transition MPAP to a new Quality Incentive Payment Program (QIPP) effective September 1, 2016 and 
implemented QIPP on September 1, 2017. QIPP requires participating facilities meeting certain 
qualifying criteria to submit projects to HHSC requesting the additional funding as supported in the 
individual projects. These projects are expected to improve quality and innovation in the provision of 
nursing facility services, including but not limited to payment incentives to establish culture change, 
small house models, staffing enhancements and outcome measures to improve the quality of care and 
life for nursing facility residents. A portion of the additional funding is funded through 
intergovernmental transfer (IGT) payments from each participating provider. QIPP IGTs for a specific 
capitation rate period are due to HHSC approximately six months prior to the beginning of the rate 
period.  During 2021, the District transferred $537,601 to HHSC via an IGT for use as the state share of 
payments for Year 4 second period March 1, 2021 through August 31, 2021.  During 2020, the District 
transferred $964,842 to HHSC via an IGT for use as the state share of payments for Year 3 second 
period March 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020 and Year 4 first period September 1, 2020 through 
February 28, 2021.  As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recorded $-0- and $530,878, 
respectively, in prepaid QIPP IGT expense.  The respective prepaid QIPP IGT expense amounts are 
included in prepaid and other current assets in the accompanying statements of net position.  
 

Under QIPP, the District is eligible to receive quality incentive payments based on achieving certain 
quality metrics.  During September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized $396,499 and $243,374, 
respectively, in QIPP revenue.  As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recorded $178,354 and 
$98,402, respectively, as QIPP revenue receivable.  The QIPP revenue receivable is recorded in other 
receivables in the accompanying statements of net position as of September 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 

NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN 

 

Plan Description 

 
The District contributes to the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS), an agent 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan (“Plan”) covering all full-time and part-time non-
temporary employees, regardless of the number of hours they work in a year.  The Plan is administered 
by a board of trustees appointed by TCDRS.  Benefit provisions are contained in the Plan document and 
were established and can be amended by action of the Hospital’s governing body within the options 
available in the state statutes governing TCDRS.  The Plan does not issue a separate report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Plan.  TCDRS in the aggregate 
issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis.  The most recent 
CAFR for TCDRS can be found at the following link, www.tcdrs.org.  
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

Benefits Provided  
 
The Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to Plan members and their beneficiaries.  
Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the Plan, with interest, 
and employer-financed monetary credits.  The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the 
governing body of the District within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the 
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the commitment of the District to 
contribute to the Plan.  At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum 
of the employee's accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly 
annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by TCDRS. 
 
Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service or with 30 years regardless of 
age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 80 or more. Members are vested after 10 
years but must leave their accumulated contributions in the Plan to receive any employer-financed 
benefit.  Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any 
amounts contributed by the employer. 
 
Employee Covered by Benefit Terms – On December 31, 2020 and 2019, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

2020 2019

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 4 1

Inactive Employees Entitled to but not Yet Receiving Benefits 30 30

Active Employees 113 112

Total 147 143

Contributions 
 
The District’s governing body has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements of 
the District and active employees. 
 
The District establishes rates based on the annually determined rate plan provisions of the TCDRS Act.  
The Plan is funded by monthly contributions from both the employee members and the employer based 
on the covered payroll of employee members.  Plan members are required to contribute 4.0% of their 
annually covered salary.  Under the TCDRS Act, rates are based on an actuarially determined rate 
recommended by an independent actuary.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

Contributions (Continued) 
 
The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rate of employees.  For the Plan years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, employees 
contributed $289,647 and $198,666, or 5.0% and 4.0%, of covered payroll, respectively, and the District 
contributed $436,228 and $148,058, or 7.5% and 3.0% of covered payroll, respectively, to the Plan. 
 

Net Pension (Asset)/Liability 

 
At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 
2020 and 2019, respectively, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  
 

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 and 2019 actuarial valuations were determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Asset Valuation Method

Smoothing period 5 years

Recognition period Non-asymptotic

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by age and service.  4.6% average over career including

inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (Gross of administrative expenses)

Mortality rates were based as follows: 
 

Depositing Members

90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for males and 

90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for females, 

projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014.

Service Retirees, 

Beneficiaries, and Non-

deposting Members

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 

110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females, 

both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014.

Disabled Retirees

130% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 

115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for females, 

both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

Net Pension (Asset)/Liability (Continued) 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.   
 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Geometric Real Rate of Return

Allocation (Expected minus Inflation)

U.S Equities 11.50% 4.25%

Global Equities 2.50% 4.55%

International Equities-Developed 5.00% 4.25%

International Equities-Emerging Markets 6.00% 4.75%

Investment-Grade Bonds 3.00% -0.85%

Strategic Credit 9.00% 2.11%

Direct Lending 16.00% 6.70%

Distressed Debt 4.00% 5.70%

REIT Equities 2.00% 3.45%

Master Limited Partnerships (MLP's) 2.00% 5.10%

Private Real Estate Partnerships 6.00% 4.90%

Private Equity 25.00% 7.25%

Hedge Funds 6.00% 1.85%

Cash Equivalents 2.00% -0.70%

100.00%

Asset Class

 
Discount Rate 

 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60% and 8.10% on December 31, 
2020 and 2019, respectively.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and Hospital contributions will 
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the 
employee rate.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
The following table summarizes the changes in the net pension asset as of December 31, 2020, the 
valuation date: 
 

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Asset Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

Balances as of December 31, 2019 1,476,473$    1,420,501$    55,972$            

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost 400,864         -                    400,864            
Interest on Total Pension Liability 150,413         -                    150,413            
Effect of Plan Changes 428,759         -                    428,759            
Effect of Economic/Demographic Gains 
  or Losses 64,342           -                    64,342              
Effect of Assumptions Changes or Inputs 202,538         -                    202,538            
Refund of Contributions (38,148)         (38,148)         -                        
Benefit Payments (3,430)           (3,430)           -                        
Administrative Expenses -                    (1,662)           1,662                
Member Contributions -                    289,647         (289,647)           
Net Investment Income -                    148,146         (148,146)           
Employer Contributions -                    436,228         (436,228)           
Other -                    20,390           (20,390)             

Balances as of December 31, 2020 2,681,811$    2,271,671$    410,141$          

2020

Increase (Decrease)
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
The following table summarizes the changes in the net pension liability (asset) as of December 31, 2019, 
the valuation date: 
 

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Asset Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

Balances as of December 31, 2018 857,638$       936,718$       (79,080)$           

Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 295,819         -                    295,819            
Interest on Total Pension Liability 92,377           -                    92,377              
Effect of Plan Changes 212,394         -                    212,394            
Effect of Economic/Demographic Gains 

  or Losses 44,767           -                    44,767              
Refund of Contributions (25,996)         (25,996)         -                        
Benefit Payments (526)              (526)              -                        
Administrative Expenses -                    (1,082)           1,082                
Member Contributions -                    198,666         (198,666)           
Net Investment Income -                    153,502         (153,502)           
Employer Contributions -                    148,058         (148,058)           
Other -                    11,161           (11,161)             

Balances as of December 31, 2019 1,476,473$    1,420,501$    55,972$            

2019

Increase (Decrease)

 
Sensitivity to the Net Pension (Asset)/Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following 
presents the net pension (asset)/liability of the District, calculated using the discount rate of 7.6%, as 
well as what the District’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.6%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.6%) than the current rate as 
of the valuation date December 31: 
 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.60% 7.60% 8.60%

Total Pension Liability 3,168,786$       2,681,812$       2,286,838$       
Fiduciary Net Position 2,271,671         2,271,671         2,271,671         

Net Pension (Asset)/Liability 897,115$          410,141$          15,167$            

2020
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
7.10% 8.10% 9.10%

Total Pension Liability 1,735,238$       1,476,473$       1,265,431$       
Fiduciary Net Position 1,420,501         1,420,501         1,420,501         

Net Pension (Asset)/Liability 314,737$          55,972$            (155,070)$         

2019

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued TCDRS financial report. 
 

Pension (Income) Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to Pensions 

 
For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $563,483 
and $271,193, respectively.  On September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the TCDRS defined benefit pension plan from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 10,683$            100,120$             

Changes in Assumptions or Inputs -                        174,583               

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 19,072              -                           

Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date -                        432,575               

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience -$                      41,820$               

Changes in Assumptions or Inputs -                        1,223                   

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 15,026              -                           

Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date -                        376,412               

2021

2020
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NOTE 12 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

Pension (Income) Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to Pensions (Continued) 

 
Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to the TCDRS defined benefit pension plan, excluding contributions made subsequent to measurement 
date, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year Ended September 30:

2021 43,421$      

2022 44,285        
2023 31,967        

2024 44,763        

2025 42,388        
Thereafter 38,124        

 
NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

Litigation - The District is, from time to time, subject to claims and suits for damages, including 
damages for personal injuries to patients and others, most of which are covered as to risk and amount.  
In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of pending legal proceedings will not have a 
material effect on the District's net position or results of operations. 
 
Leases - The District leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various 
dates. Total rental expense, including leases, was $28,777 and $23,284 during 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
Texas Medicaid 1115 Healthcare Transformation Waiver Recoupment Liability – During 2017, 
several hospitals filed a lawsuit against the federal government challenging the rule calculating 
disproportionate share (DSH) and uncompensated care (UC) payments. The hospitals claimed the rule’s 
definition of “costs incurred” was contrary to the Medicaid Act. The main issue is whether payments 
made by Medicare and private insurers should be subtracted from a hospital’s “costs incurred” in the 
calculation of the Medicaid Hospital Specific Limit (HSL). In August 2019, the D.C. Circuit reinstated 
the 2017 Final Rule as adopted by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. As a result, the HSL 
was subsequently recalculated, resulting in numerous hospitals receiving DSH and UC funds in excess 
of the calculated limit during demonstration year 7. Consequently, management has recorded an 
estimate for the anticipated recoupment of DSH and UC funds at September 30, 2021 and 2020. At 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, management recorded an estimated recoupment liability of $-0- and 
$80,000, respectively. The recoupment liabilities are included within other accrued liabilities in the 
accompanying statements of net position. 
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NOTE 14 – MEDICAL MALPRACTICE CLAIMS 

 

The District is a unit of government covered by the Texas Tort Claims Act which, by statute, limits its 
liability to $100,000 per person and $300,000 for each single occurrence.  These limits coincide with the 
malpractice insurance coverage maintained by the District, which is purchased under a claims-made 
policy on a fixed premium basis.  Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require a health care provider to accrue the expense of its share of malpractice claims costs, if 
any, for any reported and unreported incidents of potential improper professional service occurring 
during the year by estimating the probable ultimate costs of the incidents.  Based upon the District’s 
claims experience, no such accrual has been made.   
 
NOTE 15 – CARES ACT PROVIDER RELIEF FUNDS 

 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act (P.L. 116-136), the Paycheck 
Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act (P.L. 116-139), and the Coronavirus Response 
and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (P.L. 116-123) appropriated funds to reimburse eligible 
healthcare providers for healthcare related expenses or lost revenues attributable to coronavirus. These 
funds were distributed by the Health Resources and Services Administration (“HRSA”) through the 
Provider Relief Fund (“PRF”) program. The District received relief funds through Phase 1-3 stimulus 
payments and targeted distributions such as Rural Distribution, and Allocation for Skilled Nursing 
Facilities (“SNF”). Recipients of these funds agreed to Terms and Conditions, which require compliance 
with reporting requirements as specified by the Secretary of Health and Human Services in program 
instructions.  
 

 Stimulus Phases 1-3 – By accepting the Relief Funds, the District must maintain compliance 
with the Secretary's terms and conditions, including but not limited to, using the Relief Funds to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, and shall reimburse the District only for health 
care related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus. The District's 
commitment to full compliance with all terms and conditions is material to the Secretary's 
decision to disburse these funds. Non-compliance with any terms and conditions is grounds for 
the secretary to recoup some or all of the payment made from the Relief Fund. The District 
received stimulus funds in the amount of $-0- and $461,992 for the years ended September 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively.  For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District 
recognized $13,980 and $448,012, respectively, in PRF revenue.  At September 30, 2021 and 
2020, management recorded remaining PRF receipts of $-0- and $13,980, respectively, as 
deferred inflows of resources.  The remaining PRF receipts are included in CARES Act Provider 
Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net position.      

 

 Rural Distribution – The provider Relief Funds designated to rural hospitals is for those 
hospitals that are located in a geography that is a non-Metro county, is an independent rural 
health clinic, critical access hospital, or has a Rural-Urban Commuting Area (RUCA) code of 2, 
3, or 4-10. The funds received by the District shall reimburse the expenses used to prevent, 
prepare for, and respond to coronavirus or lost revenues attributable to coronavirus. The District 
received rural distribution funds in the amount of $-0- and $3,264,098 for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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NOTE 15 – CARES ACT PROVIDER RELIEF FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

 

 Rural Distribution (Continued) – For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the 
District recognized $1,484,154 and $1,779,944, respectively, in rural distribution revenue.  At 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, management recorded remaining PRF receipts of $-0- and 
$1,484,154, respectively, as deferred inflows of resources.  The remaining PRF receipts are 
included in CARES Act Provider Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net position.      

 

 Allocation for Skilled Nursing Facilities (“SNFs”) – The Relief Funds provided to skilled 
nursing facilities is to help them combat the effects of the pandemic on the nation's vulnerable 
seniors. The provider relief funds will be used to support nursing homes suffering from 
significant expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. Each SNF will receive a fixed 
distribution of $50,000, plus a distribution of $2,500 per bed to all certified SNFs with six or 
more certified beds. The Nursing Home must attest they will only use the Provider Relief Fund 
payments to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, and that the Payment shall 
reimburse for health care related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus. 
The District received SNF funds in the amount of $199,604 and $873,593 for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the District recognized $638,993 and $123,979, respectively, in SNF revenue.  At September 30, 
2021 and 2020, management recorded remaining SNF receipts of $310,225 and $749,614, 
respectively, as deferred inflows of resources.  The remaining SNF receipts are included in 
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net position.      
 

 Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) – Sections 1102 and 1106 of the CARES Act provides 
for the Paycheck Protection Program and loan forgiveness.  The PPP and loan forgiveness are 
intended to provide economic relief to small businesses nationwide adversely impacted under the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 Emergency Declaration through the provision of loans issued by the 
U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”).  The PPP loan allows borrowers to cover eligible 
payroll costs and certain mortgage interest, rent, and utility payments during the covered period.  
The covered period is an eight consecutive week period beginning on the date of disbursement of 
the PPP loan proceeds or the first day of the first payroll cycle in the covered period.  During the 
year ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District received in $-0- and $907,977, 
respectively, in PPP loan proceeds.  The loan carried an interest rate of 1.00%, payable in 
monthly installments of $51,098, matures April 30, 2022, and secured by the SBA.  In November 
2020, the PPP loan was forgiven in full by the SBA.            

 

 Rural Health Clinic Testing – The Department of Health and Human Services distributed funds 
received from the Public Health and Social Services Emergency Fund, as appropriated in P.L. 
116-139 (“Rural Testing Relief Fund”). The District is to use the funding reimburse for COVID-
19 testing requirements, including purchasing supplies (such as test kits and other testing 
supplies).  In connection with this program, the District received $-0- and $49,461 in Rural 
Testing Relief Funds for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  For the 
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized $49,461 and $-0-, 
respectively, in Rural Testing Relief revenue.   
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NOTE 15 – CARES ACT PROVIDER RELIEF FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

 

 Rural Health Clinic Testing (Continued) - At September 30, 2021 and 2020, management 
recorded remaining Rural Testing Relief Fund receipts of $-0- and $49,461, respectively, as 
deferred inflows of resources.  The remaining Rural Testing Relief Fund receipts are included in 
CARES Act Provider Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net position. 

 
NOTE 16 – AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 

 

 COVID-19 Testing and Mitigation Program - In March 2021, the United States Congress the 
American Rescue Plan (“ARP”) Act (P.L. 117-2).  The ARP Act appropriated additional funds to 
address the continued impact of COVID-19 on the economy, public health, state and local 
governments, individuals, and businesses.  These funds were distributed by the Health Resources 
and Services Administration (“HRSA”) through the COVID-19 Testing and Mitigation program.  
The COVID-19 Testing and Mitigation program provides assistance for maintaining and 
increasing COVID-19 testing efforts, expanding access to testing in rural communities, and 
expanding the range of mitigation activities in local communities. The District received COVID-
19 Testing and Mitigation program funds in the amount of $100,000 and $-0- for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the District recognized $39,918 and $-0-, respectively, of COVID-19 Testing and Mitigation 
program revenue.  At September 30, 2021 and 2020, management recorded remaining COVID-
19 Testing and Mitigation program receipts of $60,082 and $-0-, respectively, as deferred 
inflows of resources.  The remaining COVID-19 Testing and Mitigation program receipts are 
included in CARES Act Provider Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net position.  
 

 Rural Health Clinic Vaccine Confidence Program - In March 2021, the United States 
Congress the American Rescue Plan (“ARP”) Act (P.L. 117-2).  The ARP Act appropriated 
additional funds to improve vaccine confidence, counter vaccine hesitancy, and help wit access 
to vaccination in rural communities that are medically underserved and/or experiencing low 
COVID-19 vaccination rates.  There funds were distributed by HRSA through the Rural Health 
Clinic Vaccine Confidence (“RHCVC”) program.  The RHCVC program allows for the use of 
funds for a broad range of efforts to improve health care in rural areas and reinforce basic 
messages about prevention and treatment of COVID-19 and other infectious diseases.  Such 
efforts may include vaccine promotion, information dissemination to rural residents about how 
and where to get vaccinated, coordinating with existing vaccination sites and public health 
partners to identify isolated and/or vaccine hesitant populations, and increased rural community 
and individual patient literacy on benefits of broad vaccination and the safety of vaccines.  The 
District received RHCVC program funds in the amount of $49,529 and $-0- for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the District recognized $-0- and $-0-, respectively, of RHCVC program revenue.  At September 
30, 2021 and 2020, management recorded remaining RHCVC program receipts of $49,529 and 
$-0-, respectively, as deferred inflows of resources.  The remaining RHCVC program receipts 
are included in CARES Act Provider Relief Funds in the accompanying statements of net 
position. 
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NOTE 17 – MEDICARE ADVANCE AND ACCELERATED PAYMENT PROGRAM 

 

As part of the CARES Act, providers and suppliers (including physician practices) became eligible to 
request up to 100% of the Medicare payment amount they have historically received over a prior 90-day 
period.  Any advance payments received are loans in the form of cash advances and are subject to 
automatic recoupment by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) or repayment by the 
provider or supplier.  CMS will recover the advance payments through automatic recoupment against all 
newly submitted and outstanding claims for payment.  The automatic recoupment of funds will begin 
120 days after disbursement.  This recoupment will continue for a 90-day period through day 210 post 
payment.  Should the advance funds be recovered sooner or should the provider elect to directly repay 
any advance funds, the recoupment will automatically end.  Should the advance funds not be fully 
recovered in the allotted time frame, CMS will issue a demand for payment of the outstanding funds.  
The use of these advance payments is unrestricted in nature but is presumed to be for operations.  The 
advance payments are expected to be recouped beginning in April 2021.  During the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District received Medicare advanced payments of $-0- and 
$3,298,090, respectively.  During the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized 
$1,000,080 and $-0-, respectively, in Medicare advanced payments revenue.  The Medicare advanced 
payments revenue is included in net patient service revenue in the accompanying statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  During the years ended September 30, At September 
30, 2021 and 2020, management recorded deferred Medicare advance payments of $2,298,010 and 
$3,298,090, respectively. 
 
NOTE 18 - COVID-19 CLAIMS REIMBURSEMENT TO HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS AND 

FACILITIES FOR TESTING, TREATMENT, AND VACCINE ADMINISTRATION FOR THE 

UNINSURED 

 
The COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement to Health Care Providers and Facilities for Testing, Treatment, 
and Vaccine Administration for the Uninsured (“COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement”) program provides 
reimbursements on a rolling basis directly to eligible health care entities for claims that are attributed to 
the testing, treatment, and or vaccine administration of COVID-19 for uninsured individuals.  The 
COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement program is funded as follows: 
 

 Testing – The American Rescue Plan Act; the Families First Coronavirus Response Act Relief 
Fund, which includes funds received from the Public Health and Social Services Emergency 
Fund; and the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act (“PPPHCEA”) 
provides funds to reimburse health care entities for conducting COVID-19 testing for the 
uninsured. 
 

 Treatment and vaccination - The Provider Relief Fund, which includes funds received from the 
Public Health and Social Services Emergency Fund, as appropriated in the CARES Act, the 
PPPHCEA, and the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act provide 
funding to support healthcare-related expenses attributable to the treatment of uninsured 
individuals with COVID-19 and vaccination of uninsured individuals.   
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NOTE 18 - COVID-19 CLAIMS REIMBURSEMENT TO HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS AND 

FACILITIES FOR TESTING, TREATMENT, AND VACCINE ADMINISTRATION FOR THE 

UNINSURED (CONTINUED) 

 
As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the District received $125,955 and $-0-, respectively, in COVID-19 
Claims Reimbursement program funds.  The COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement program revenue is 
included in net patient service revenue in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position. 
 

NOTE 19 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

The date to which events occurring after September 30, 2021, the date of the most recent statement of 
net position, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial statements or disclosure is 
March 25, 2022, which is the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost 400,864$       295,819$       265,125$       233,940$       173,630$        
Interest on Total Pension Liability 150,413         92,377           59,079           33,405           6,868              
Effect of Plan Changes 428,759         212,394         93,087           -                 -                      
Effect of Assumption Changes or Inputs 202,538         -                 -                 1,955             -                      
Effect of Economic/Demographic (Gains)

or Losses 64,342           44,767           (17,094)          25,336           866
Benefit Payments/Refunds of Contributions (41,577)          (26,522)          (13,357)          (4,513)            (689)                

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,205,339      618,835         386,840         290,123         180,675          

Total Pension Liability, Beginning 1,476,473      857,638         470,798         180,675         -                      
Total Pension Liability, Ending 2,681,812$    1,476,473$    857,638$       470,798$       180,675$        

Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions 436,228$       148,058$       289,173$       119,717$       65,366$          
Member Contributions 289,647         198,666         165,908         167,052         104,166          
Investment Income Net of Investment 

Expenses 148,146         153,502         (4,133)            29,558           -                      
Benefit Payments/Refunds of 

Contributions (41,578)          (26,522)          (13,357)          (4,513)            (689)                
Administrative Expenses (1,663)            (1,082)            (752)               (324)               -                      
Other 20,390           11,161           13,209           3,780             2,557              

Net Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 851,170         483,783         450,048         315,270         171,400          

Fiduciary Net Position, Beginning 1,420,501      936,718         486,670         171,400         -                      
Fiduciary Net Position, Ending 2,271,671$    1,420,501$    936,718$       486,670$       171,400$        

Net Pension Liability (Asset), Ending 410,141$       55,972$         (79,080)$        (15,872)$        9,275$            

Fiduciary Net Position as a % of Total

Pension Liability 84.71% 96.21% 109.22% 103.37% 94.87%

Pensionable Covered Payroll 5,792,945$    4,966,657$    4,147,705$    4,176,291$    2,604,154$     

Net Pension Liability as a % of Covered 

Payroll 7.08% 1.13% -1.91% -0.38% 0.36%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, recalculation

of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with the standards of GASB

67/68, they should not be shown here.  Therefore, we have shown only years for which the new GASB

statements have been implemented.  

Schedule of Changes in the District's Net Pension (Asset)/Liability

and Related Ratios

Year Ended December 31,
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Year Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Actual Contribution

Ending Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered 

December 31, Contribution (1) Contribution (1) (Excess) Payroll (2) Payroll

2010 -$                  -$                   -$               -$                   -                        

2011 -                    -                     -                 -                     -                        

2012 -                    -                     -                 -                     -                        

2013 -                    -                     -                 -                     -                        

2014 -                    -                     -                 -                     -                        

2015 -                    -                     -                 -                     -                        

2016 65,366          65,366           -                 2,604,154      2.5%

2017 104,825        119,717         (14,892)      4,176,291      2.9%

2018 94,982          289,173         (194,191)    4,147,705      7.0%

2019 139,558        148,058         (8,500)        4,966,657      3.0%

2020 206,228        436,228         (230,000)    5,792,945      7.5%

(1) TCDRS calculates actuarially determined contributions on a calendar year basis.  GASB Statement No. 68 indicates

the employer should report employer contribution amounts on a fiscal year basis.  If additional assistance is needed, 

please contract TCDRS.

(2) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS.

Schedule of Employer Contributions
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Notes to Schedule of Employer Contributions: 

 

Valuation Date:  Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1, one year prior 

to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

 

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determined Contributions Rates: 

 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period 20.0 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2020

valuation)

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by age and service.  4.6% average over career including

inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%, net of administrative and investment expenses, including

inflation

Retirement Age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to

commence receiving benefit payments based on age.  The 

average age at service retirement for recent retirees is 61.

Mortality 130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males

and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for 

females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale 

after 2014.

Changes in Assumptions and 2015: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.

Methods Reflected in the 2017: New mortality assumptions were reflected.

Schedule of Employer 2019: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.

Contributions

Changes in Plan Provisions 2015: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule.

Reflected in the Schedule of 2016: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule.

Employer Contributions* 2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits

earned after 2017.

2018: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule.

2019: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule

2020: Employer contributions reflect that the member contribution

rate was increased to 5%

* Only changes that affect the benefit amount and that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the

Notes to Schedule.
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Federal Pass-through Total

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Direct Programs:

COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement to Health Care

Providers and Facilities for Testing, Treatment, and 93.461 125,955$         

Vaccine Administration for the Uninsured

Provider Relief Fund 93.498 4,304,979$      

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 4,430,934        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 4,430,934$      
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NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “SEFA”) includes the federal award 
activity of Ballinger Memorial Hospital District (the “District”), under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended September 30, 2021. The information in the SEFA is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the District, it is 
not intended to and does not present the financial position, revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, or cash flows of the District. 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST RATE 

 
The District has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
 
NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS 

 
The District did not provide any federal awards to subrecipients during the year ended September 30, 
2021. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 

Board of Directors and Management  

Ballinger Memorial Hospital District 

Ballinger, Texas  

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards  

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Ballinger Memorial 

Hospital District (the “District”), which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 

2021, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and statements of 

cash flows and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 

March 25, 2022.  

 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 

timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance.  

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 

may exist that have not been identified.  We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a 

material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 

the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 

disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 

Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Ballinger Memorial Hospital District’s Response to Findings 

 

Ballinger Memorial Hospital District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Ballinger Memorial Hospital District’s 

response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 

and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

 

Purpose of this Report  

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and 

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

Durbin & Company L.L.P 

Lubbock, Texas 

March 25, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 

 

Board of Directors and Management 
Ballinger Memorial Hospital District 
Ballinger, Texas 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  

 

We have audited Ballinger Memorial Hospital District (the “District”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements  described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021. 
The District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;  and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 

of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.  
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

 

In our opinion, Ballinger Memorial Hospital District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 

major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.  

 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  

 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 

over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 

performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with 

the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 

determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 

the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 

program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 

internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 

material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 

charged with governance.  

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 

the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 

 

Durbin & Company, L.L.P 

Lubbock, Texas 

March 25, 2022 
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SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS: 

 

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of 
Ballinger Memorial Hospital District were prepared in accordance with GAAP.   
        

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements was reported in the
 Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
 and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
 Government Auditing Standards.       
        
3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Ballinger Memorial Hospital 

District, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards, were disclosed during the audit.         
     

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported
 in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
 Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.     
      
5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Ballinger Memorial 

Hospital District expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.  
         
6. There are no such findings related to major programs that are required to be reported in accordance 

with 2 CFR §200.516(a). 
  
7.      The program tested as a major program were: 
 

CFDA Number

Provider Relief Fund 93.498

Cluster/Program

8.      The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000. 
 
9.      Ballinger Memorial Hospital District was not determined not to be a low-risk auditee. 
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FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

 

Material Weakness: 

 

2021-001 Accounting Estimates

Condition:   Management did not maintain financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") throughout the year.  Therefore, 

certain general ledger accounts required adjustments for the year-end financial 

statement presentation.  Areas in which material audit adjustments were proposed 

and recorded by management included:

Context:   Certain general ledger accounts were not recorded in accordance with 

GAAP and were not properly safeguarded from misstatements.

Cause:   Although management has a financial close process in place and 

procedures to calculate estimates for uncollectible patient accounts, third-party 

payor settlements, and employee health insurance claims, the estimates require 

analysis of several factors, some of which are complex.  Certain factors include 

analysis patient utilization, allowable expenses incurred for the provision of 

healthcare services, interim payments received from the Medicare fiscal 

intermediary, and subsequent activity not available to management at during the 

year-end financial close process.

Effect:   Audit adjustments, some of which were material, were proposed and 

recorded by management.

Recommendation:   Management should review and update its financial close 

procedures to include review and analysis of patient utilization and related 

allowable expenses; historical review of prior cost report settlements; interim third-

party payments, including patient receipts, and employee health claims submissions.  

These procedures should allow management to record estimates for uncollectible 

patient accounts, third-party payor settlements, and self-funded employee health 

insurance claims payable in accordance with GAAP.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Management

strives to report financial statements accurately on a monthly basis.  Estimates 

and insights utilized in the monthly preparation of financial statements are limited 

to the knowledge available at the time of preparation.  Management will continue 

to use estimates and calculations in order to attempt to accurately reflect the

District's financial statements in accordance with GAAP.  Such methods for 

recording estimates will include review of patient utilization, patient-related 

collection history, age of patient accounts receivable, review of prior cost report

settlements, and review of employee health claims history. 
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

 

- None 
 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

- None 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

 

 

 

Audit Finding Reference Number:  2021-001 

 

Contact Information: 

Chief Executive Officer/Administrator 

P.O. Box 617, Ballinger, Texas 76821 

Ballinger Memorial Hospital District 

 

Plan of Corrective Action: 

 

Management strives to report financial statements accurately on a monthly basis.  Estimates and insights 

utilized in the monthly preparation of financial statements are limited to the knowledge available at the 

time of preparation.  Management will continue to use estimates and calculations in order to attempt to 

accurately reflect the District’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles.  Such methods for recording estimates will include review of patient utilization, patient-

related collection history, age of patient accounts receivable, review of prior cost report settlements, and 

review of employee health claims history. 

 

Anticipated Implementation Date: 

 

April 1, 2022 


